

# Senate Calendar

---

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2010

SENATE CONVENES AT: 10:20 A.M.

---

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

### ACTION CALENDAR

#### Third Reading

**H. 533** Military parents' rights ..... 131

### NOTICE CALENDAR

#### Second Reading

##### Favorable

**H. 483** Approval of the merger of the Village of North Westminster and the Town of Westminster and the charter of the Town of Westminster ..... 131

##### Favorable with Recommendation of Amendment

**S. 255** An amendment to the charter of the Chittenden County Transportation Authority..... 131

**S. 272** Human trafficking ..... 134

### ORDERED TO LIE

**S. 99** Amending the Act 250 criteria relating to traffic, scattered development, and rural growth areas ..... 138



---

---

**ORDERS OF THE DAY**

---

---

**ACTION CALENDAR**

**Third Reading**

**H. 533.**

An act relating to military parents' rights.

**NOTICE CALENDAR**

**Second Reading**

**Favorable**

**H. 483.**

An act relating to approval of the merger of the Village of North Westminster and the Town of Westminster and the charter of the Town of Westminster.

**Reported favorably by Senator White for the Committee on Government Operations.**

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

**Favorable with Recommendation of Amendment**

**S. 255.**

An act relating to an amendment to the charter of the Chittenden County Transportation Authority.

**Reported favorably with recommendation of amendment by Senator Flanagan for the Committee on Government Operations.**

The Committee recommends that the bill be amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. CHITTENDEN COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY;  
CHARTER; CODIFICATION

The legislative council shall, consistent with section 424 of Title 2, codify the charter of the Chittenden County Transportation Authority as set forth in No. 122 of the acts of 1973 and as that act is further amended by this act. Codification may include the correction of internal cross-references.

Sec. 2. Secs. 2, 3, 6, and 7 of No. 122 of the Acts of 1973 are amended to read:

Sec. 2. Area of Operation

The area of operation shall be Chittenden County, and may additionally include the boundaries of municipalities in adjoining counties, if such municipalities determine to join the authority as set forth in section 3 of this act, Franklin, Grand Isle, and Washington Counties and the towns of Orange, Washington, and Williamstown. The area of operation shall include Addison and Caledonia counties and the towns of Orange County other than Orange, Washington, and Williamstown, but only for the provision of commuter services. The area of operation shall include Lamoille County, but only for the provision of published scheduled services.

### Sec. 3. Membership in the authority

Membership in the authority shall consist of those municipalities which elect to join the authority by majority vote of its voters present and voting on ~~said~~ the question at an annual or special meeting duly warned for ~~such~~ the purpose prior to July 1, 2010. Beginning July 1, 2010, a municipality may hold an annual meeting or a special meeting for the purpose of determining through election by a majority vote of its voters present and voting on the question only if the municipality is specifically authorized to join the authority either under Sec. 13 of this charter or by resolution duly passed by the Chittenden County Transportation Authority Board of Commissioners. The initial meeting of a municipality called to determine whether or not to join the authority shall be warned in the manner provided by law, except that for such meeting only, any warning need not be posted for a period in excess of 20 days, any other provision of law or municipal charter to the contrary notwithstanding. Membership may be terminated only in the manner provided in section 8 of this act.

### Sec. 6. Government and organization

(a) The officers of the authority, and their election or designation shall be as follows:

(1) Board of commissioners. The purposes, powers, duties and responsibilities of the authority shall be exercised by the board of commissioners, consisting of ~~two commissioners~~ one commissioner from each municipality which is a member of this authority and two commissioners from the City of Burlington. ~~Such~~ The commissioners shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the legislative body of the member municipality. Any vacancies on the board of commissioners shall be filled by the legislative body of the respective member municipality, but in the event that the legislative body fails to appoint a commissioner within two months from the date of the occurrence of the vacancy, ~~such~~ the vacancy shall be filled by the board of commissioners. Commissioners shall serve without pay.

\* \* \*

Sec. 7. Annual budget and assessments

\* \* \*

(c) The treasurer of the authority, following adoption of the budget, shall apportion the sums required to be contributed by each member municipality according to the ~~average number of weekly miles of service for the 12 month period preceding the adoption of the budget, for each member community, as compared to the average number of weekly miles of service for all member communities for the same period~~ formula for apportionment. The formula for apportionment may be changed by the board of commissioners with the concurrence of ~~all~~ the legislative bodies of at least three-quarters of the member municipalities.

\* \* \*

Sec. 3. Sec. 48 of No. 56 of the Acts of 2003 is amended to read:

Sec. 48. Sec. 4(c)(11) of No. 122 of the Acts of 1973 is amended to read:

\* \* \*

(11) Within Chittenden County and its member municipalities, to acquire by the exercise of the power of eminent domain any real property which it may have found necessary for its purposes, in the manner provided for the condemnation of land or rights therein as set forth in sections 221-233 of Title 19, and acts amendatory thereof or supplementary thereto;

Sec. 4. No. 122 of the Acts of 1973 is amended by adding new sections 12, 13, and 14 to read:

Sec. 12. ASSESSMENTS OF NEW MEMBERS OUTSIDE OF CHITTENDEN COUNTY

Municipalities outside of Chittenden County that vote to join Chittenden County Transportation Authority on or after July 1, 2010, shall negotiate with the board of commissioners of the Chittenden County Transportation Authority on the amount of the levy to be assessed upon the municipality and terms of payment of that assessment; and the municipality may not join prior to agreement with the authority on terms of the levy and payment. Upon the addition of one municipality to the membership of the Chittenden County Transportation Authority from outside Chittenden County, said authority shall immediately begin work on the formula for assessment that will be approved in accordance with this act.

Sec. 13. MUNICIPALITIES AUTHORIZED TO VOTE FOR MEMBERSHIP IN THE CHITTENDEN COUNTY TRANSPORTATION

## AUTHORITY

The following municipalities are authorized to hold an election for the purpose of determining membership in the Chittenden County Transportation Authority: Barre City, Berlin, Colchester, Hinesburg, Montpelier, Morristown, Richmond, St. Albans City, Stowe, and Waterbury.

### Sec. 14. OTHER REPRESENTATION

If Washington, Lamoille, Franklin, or Grand Isle county does not have a municipal member from its county on the board of commissioners of the Chittenden County Transportation Authority, the regional planning commission serving the county may appoint a board member to the Chittenden County Transportation Authority from a member of its regional planning commission or regional planning commission staff to represent its interests on the Chittenden County Transportation Authority board.

### Sec. 5. REPEAL

Secs. 46 and 47 of No. 56 of the Acts of 2003 are repealed.

### Sec. 6. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2011. However, a municipality that is authorized to vote for membership in the Chittenden County Transportation Authority under Secs. 3 and 13 of No. 122 of the Acts of 1973 as amended by this act, shall be authorized to do so at its 2011 annual meeting.

## S. 272.

An act relating to human trafficking.

**Reported favorably with recommendation of amendment by Senator Mullin for the Committee on Judiciary.**

The Committee recommends that the bill be amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

### Sec. 1. FINDINGS

The general assembly finds that:

(1) According to his book, *The Slave Next Door: Human Trafficking and Slavery in America Today*, Dr. Kevin Bales states that the number of human beings estimated to be enslaved today has reached over 27 million worldwide, the highest in recorded history. Vermont and all of its bordering states have seen elements of human trafficking, yet Vermont is the only remaining state in the Northeast and one of the remaining five in the nation lacking legislation on this issue. Vermont's geographical location bordering Canada makes it susceptible to human trafficking activity.

(2) Human trafficking is an interrelated, under-reported crime that is intentionally kept secret by the traffickers who profit by billions of dollars from these crimes. Human trafficking is the third most profitable illegal global enterprise after drug and weapon trafficking, all of which have been found to be closely related.

(3) Because Vermont has a limited level of awareness regarding the existence of human trafficking within its own borders, the collaborative efforts of a human trafficking task force are necessary to raise public awareness and to recommend measures that will assist victims of human trafficking.

## Sec. 2. HUMAN TRAFFICKING TASK FORCE

(a) As used in this section, “human trafficking” shall have the same meaning as in 18 U.S.C. §§ 1589–1592.

(b) For purposes of the definition of “human trafficking,” “forced labor” means providing or obtaining the labor or services of a person:

(1) by threats of serious harm to, or physical restraint against, that person or another person;

(2) by means of any scheme, plan, or pattern intended to cause the person to believe that if the person did not perform such labor or services, that person or another person would suffer serious harm or physical restraint; or

(3) by means of the abuse or threatened abuse of law or the legal process.

(c) The human trafficking task force is established for the purpose of raising public awareness about human trafficking within the state and across state and international borders, identifying resources for the victims of human trafficking, recommending to the public ways to identify and report acts of human trafficking and reporting, and making findings and recommendations regarding those efforts to the general assembly.

(d) The human trafficking task force shall be composed of the following members:

(1) the attorney general or his or her designee, who shall serve as chair;

(2) a representative of the law enforcement community, appointed by the commissioner of public safety;

(3) a representative of Vermont’s emergency housing or shelter community;

(4) representatives, appointed by the governor, from each of the following:

- (A) the Vermont state housing authority;
- (B) the department of labor;
- (C) the department of education;
- (D) the department for children and families;
- (E) the business community; and
- (F) the agency of agriculture, food and markets.

(5) a representative, appointed by the secretary, from the agency of human services who specializes in refugee matters;

(6) a representative of the coalition of Vermonters against slavery today;

(7) a representative of the Vermont farm bureau;

(8) a representative of the Vermont network against domestic and sexual violence;

(9) a representative of the Vermont coalition of runaway and homeless youth programs;

(10) a representative of the Vermont crime victim's services; and

(11) an immigration attorney, appointed by the Vermont bar association.

(e) The task force shall consult with representatives from the following:

(1) the human rights commission;

(2) the department of public safety;

(3) the polaris project;

(4) health care professionals;

(5) the United States' attorney for Vermont;

(6) migrant worker and other labor advocacy groups; and

(7) any other groups or individuals the committee deems appropriate.

(f) The task force shall perform the following duties:

(1) Identify ways to raise public awareness about human trafficking in Vermont communities.

(2) Recommend how the Vermont public, business community, local and state government, health, and education providers can best identify, report, and prevent acts of human trafficking in Vermont.

(3) Identify the services needed by victims of human trafficking and their families, and recommend ways to provide those services.

(g) The task force shall have the assistance and cooperation of all state and local agencies and departments.

(h) On or before November 15, 2010, the task force shall report to the members of the senate and house committees on judiciary and to legislative council its recommendations and legislative proposals relating to its findings.

(i) On or before January 15, 2011, the task force shall report to the general assembly and to the governor its findings and any recommendations.

(j) The task force may meet no more than six times, and shall cease to exist on January 15, 2011.

### Sec. 3. LAW ENFORCEMENT ADVISORY BOARD

(a) On or before November 15, 2010, the commissioner of public safety shall report to the law enforcement advisory board on the status of efforts by Vermont law enforcement to respond to issues regarding the crime of human trafficking and what recommendations, if any, should be made to the general assembly in order to respond more effectively to those issues.

(b) Prior to making this report, the commissioner shall consult with the following groups:

(1) a representative of the Vermont association of chiefs of police;

(2) a representative of the Vermont sheriffs' association;

(3) the attorney general, or his or her designee from the criminal division;

(4) a state's attorney, appointed by the executive director of the department of state's attorneys and sheriffs;

(5) a representative from the Vermont center for crime victim services;

(6) a representative from the network against domestic and sexual violence;

(7) a representative from the coalition of Vermonters against slavery today;

(8) the executive director of the Vermont police academy or his or her designee;

(9) the United States' attorney for Vermont or his or her designee;

(10) representatives from federal law enforcement agencies in Vermont;

(11) the human trafficking task force; and

(12) any other groups or individuals the commissioner deems appropriate.

(c) The law enforcement advisory board shall include its findings and recommendations, based upon the commissioner's report, in its annual report to the general assembly and governor as required pursuant to 24 V.S.A. § 1939(d).

#### Sec. 4. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect upon passage.

### **ORDERED TO LIE**

#### **S. 99.**

An act relating to amending the Act 250 criteria relating to traffic, scattered development, and rural growth areas.

### **CONFIRMATIONS**

The following appointments will be considered by the Senate, as a group, under suspension of the Rules, as moved by the President *pro tempore*, for confirmation together and without debate, by consent thereby given by the Senate. However, upon request of any senator, any appointment may be singled out and acted upon separately by the Senate, with consideration given to the report of the Committee to which the appointment was referred, and with full debate; and further, all appointments for the positions of Secretaries of Agencies, Commissioners of Departments, Judges, Magistrates, and members of the Public Service Board shall be fully and separately acted upon.

Robert Kelley of Brandon - Member of the Board of Education - By Senator Flory for the Committee on Education. (1/14/10)

Steven Gurin of Barre - Member of the Vermont Educational & Health Buildings Financing Agency - By Senator Cummings for the Committee on Finance. (2/3/10)

Kenneth Gibbons of Hyde Park - Member of the Vermont Educational & Health Buildings Financing Agency - By Senator McCormack for the Committee on Finance. (2/17/10)

### **PUBLIC HEARINGS**

**Wednesday, February 24, 2010** – 5-8 P.M. - Room 11 – Re: S. 252 – Consolidation – School Districts – Senate and House Committees on Education.

## **REPORTS ON FILE**

Pursuant to the provisions of 2 V.S.A. §20(c), one (1) hard copy of the following reports is on file in the office of the Secretary of the Senate. Effective January 2010, pursuant to Act No. 192, Adj. Sess. (2008) §5.005(g) some reports will automatically be sent by electronic copy only and can be found on the State of Vermont webpage.

35. Agency of Natural Resources Report on Mercury Thermostat Collection. (Department of Environmental Conservation) (February 2010)

36. Invasive Species Report. (Agency of Natural Resources, Department of Environmental Conservation) (February 2010)

37. Office of the Health Care Ombudsman Annual Report. (A Special Project of Vermont Legal Aid, Inc.) (February 2010)

38. Wind Energy Generation of State Lands. (Agency of Natural Resources) (February 2010).

39. 2008 Energy Efficiency Utility Program Revenues and Expenditures. (Public Service Board) (February 2010).

## **NOTICE OF JOINT ASSEMBLY**

**Thursday, February 18, 2010 - 10:30 A.M.** - Election of two (2) trustees for the Vermont State Colleges Corporation.

The following rules shall apply to the conduct of these elections:

First: All nominations for these offices will be presented in alphabetical order prior to voting.

Second: There will be only one nominating speech of not more than three (3) minutes and not more than two seconding speeches of not more than one (1) minute each for each nominee.